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HISTORICAL SITES GUIDE

Some sites have Texas Historical Commission markers. Others were
requested by DeWitt County Historical Commission members or
leaders of cities within the county. Directions and points on the map
are provided to assist you. Mileage is rounded to the nearest half
mile. Be prepared to do a little searching. Additional historical
information is available at the following sources:
www.tshaonline.org/handbook, www.texashistory.unt.edu,
www.atlas.thc.tx.us

CITY OF CUERO

1. DeWitt County Courthouse, 307 N Gonzales
County seat since 1876, this three-story
sandstone and granite courthouse was
completed in 1896 and restored in 2007.

2. First United Methodist Church of Cuero,

301 E Courthouse St

A Methodist congregation in the area since 1841,
a sanctuary on this site was erected in 1886. The
first worship service in the present sanctuary
was held in 2004.

3. First Presbyterian Church of Cuero,

302 N McLeod St

A frame church was floated across the
Guadalupe from Clinton and rebuilt on this site in
1883. A brick sanctuary was built in 1916 and
replaced in 1969 with the present structure.

4. St Michael's Catholic Church & School,

202 N McLeod St

Established in 1875, the congregation built
church and school buildings on this site, present
buildings remodeled in the 1960s, the early
childhood center and gym added in 2013.

5. Cuero Heritage Museum, 724 E Church St
Owned and operated by the City of Cuero in the
former post office built in 1915, exhibits include
Cuero football, Turkey Trot, Coca Cola, and
Brayton Flying Field.

6. Grace Episcopal Church, 401 N Esplanade St
Established in 1874, the congregation built this
church in 1889, the original clapboard siding
covered with stucco in the 1920s, the copper
steeple added in 1986.

7. St Mark's Lutheran Church,

400 N Esplanade St

Organized in 1880, German Lutherans held
services at this site in 1889, the present building
dedicated in 1939, the parsonage in 1953, and
the fellowship hall in 1959.

8. Chisholm Trail Heritage Museum,

302 N Esplanade St

The museum opened in 2013 in the hall built by a
fraternal order in 1903. Meeting rooms were
upstairs, and the lower floor with unfinished dirt
floor was leased to various businesses.

9. English German School,

100 block of Courthouse St at Terrell

Originally at 201 East Newman Street, the
building was flooded in 1998 and salvaged from
demolition to become part of the Chisholm Trail
Heritage Museum complex in 2014.

10. Buchel Bank Building,

106 N Esplanade St

Established in 1873, operated as Buchel National
Bank, Buchel Bank & Trust and Prosperity Bank
before being sold to Geosouthern Energy Corp in
2007, now housing county records.

11. Pharmacy & Medical Museum of Texas,

114 E Main St

Designed in 1889 for a pharmacy/drugstore, the
building never housed any other business and
has many original furnishings. It was transferred
to the City of Cuero in 2013.

12. Early Texas Bandstands, 200 block of E Main
St between the library & fire station

A replica of the first band stand erected in the
park, the marker details the importance of music
throughout the history of DeWitt County.

13. Cuero Land & Immigration Company marker,
200 block of E Main St between the library & fire
station

Formed by four men for whom city streets are
named, the company developed 4,128 acres,
giving 100 acres to the railroad and donating lots
to churches, schools, and for public use.

14. Brayton Flying Field Marker, 200 block of E
Main St between the library & fire station
Marker tells of the civilian flying school which
trained pilots for the US and Allied countries
during WWII. The school was located at 1500-
1900 FM 766, where an original hangar

owned by a private manufacturing business can
be seen from the road.

15. Morgan Steamship Line Marker,

600 E Morgan Ave

Steamship service brought mail and settlers to
Texas as early as 1835. Rail transportation to
Cuero influenced the development of the city and
surrounding area.

16. Roy Harmon Drive and Leonard Roy Harmon
Marker, E Main St into Cuero Municipal Park,
marker in front of Park Clubhouse

The street was named for a black man reared in
Cuero who sacrificed his life to evacuate
wounded shipmates. The marker gives additional
details about his life and service.

17. Municipal Park Clubhouse,

210 Leonard Roy Harmon Dr

Built by the Works Progress Administration
between 1935-1937 on land purchased by the
City of Cuero, this building has been the site of
many recreational and civic events.

18. Let Freedom Ring Veterans Park,
Leonard Roy Harmon Drive off US 87 S
Park includes a bell and pavers with the names of
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veterans from all branches of service. Harmony
Park instruments are suitable for playing by
children and adults alike.

19. Centennial Marker for DeWitt County,

US 87 S. in Settler's Park across from the Cuero
High School Performing Arts Center

The larger of two markers erected during 1936
centennial celebrations with history of the
formation of DeWitt County and names of men
who settled the area.

20. Cuero Marker, US 87 S & Serendipity Ln
Established in 1873, Cuero's population increased
significantly following hurricanes in 1875 and
1886 that caused Indianola residents to move
inland.

21. Roy Benavides Monument, US 87 S in
Settlers Park across from Cuero High School
Monument to Roy Benavides, born in Lindenau,
who received the Medal of Honor from President
Ronald Reagan for valorous actions in South
Vietnam in 1968.

22. Hillside Cemetery, End of E Reuss Blvd
Municipal burial ground, established in 1875, now
includes Evergreen Cemetery, the once-
segregated African American Cemetery.

23. DeWitt County Historical Museum,

312 E Broadway

Housed in the historic Bates-Sheppard Home,
permanent and seasonal exhibits depict various
aspects of DeWitt County history, including the
area's ties to Old Indianola.

24. Daule School,

301 Daule St, marker at 107 Daule St at park
Built in 1949 after the previous school for black
children was condemned by the State Board of
Education, voluntary integration in 1963,
mandatory integration in 1965.

OF NORDHEIM

1. Jubilee Park Pavilion,

Fourth St. between Elm & Broadway

A gift to the city during its Silver Jubilee in 1922,
many concerts and children's parties have been
held here.

2. Nordheim Museum,

SW corner of Broadway & Second St

st opened in the Old Fire Station when it was
dedicated in 1986, the impressive collections
peculiar to the community's rich heritage are now
housed at 215 Broadway. Call Gilbert Pargman
361-938-5571 or Roberta Hale 361-564-7149 for
access.

3. Nordheim Shooting Club, End of W Broadway
Formed by the merger of the Nordheim Fortschritt
Verein (Progress Club) & Nordheim Scheutzen
Verein (Shooting Club), the oldest Nordheim
organization still in existence.

4. Pilot Knob Cemetery/Nordheim Cemetery

FM 239 SE .5 miles SE from SH 72 at FM 239 &
Nordheim Cemetery Rd

A beacon for travelers, and the site of public
gatherings on its flat top, a part of this high hill is
now occupied by Nordheim's cemetery.

5. Broadway Bar & Grill, 208 Broadway

Opened as Rahenaldt Hardware Store in 1903.
Bar came from Germany circa 1903 and came to
this location in 1933. Scenes for the movie Paris,
Texas were filmed in the bar in 1984.

omyoFvorkronn )
1. DeWitt County Centennial Marker,

SH 72 E city limit of Yorktown

The smaller of two markers for DeWitt County
erected in 1936 during centennial celebrations
includes a brief history of the county and its
namesake Green DeWitt.

2. Holy Cross Catholic Church and Cemetery,
Church at 1214 Zorn Rd, Cemetery at Old FM 237
& Zorn Rd

Polish immigrants built their first church, the
Church of the Immaculate Conception, and
established a cemetery in 1867. The present red
brick church was built in 1914 and

renamed Holy Cross Church.

3. Vietnam Veterans Memorial,
600 block of E Main St/SH 72

luminated at night, a Huey UH-8 helicopter is at
the center of the memorial dedicated in 2012. It
honors more than 500 DeWitt County residents
who served during the Vietnam war, including 12
who lost their lives.

4. Yorktown Co-Founders Marker,

NE Corner of Main & Eckhardt St

Marker recounts the founding of Yorktown by
John York and Charles Eckhardt in 1848.

5. Yorktown Historical Museum,

SE corner of Main & Eckhardt St

Two buildings built of local sandstone in 1871 and
1876 once used by C Eckhardt & Sons now house
the museum.

6. Westside Cemetery, . Mehnert St./SH 119,
left on 12th St/ Westside Cemetery Rd

Largest burial ground for City of Yorktown since
the late 1800s.

7. Upper Yorktown Cemetery, N Reidel/FI 240,
past 13th St

Small cemetery formally established in 1872 by
Ann Friar.

8. Site of Home of Captain John York, FM 237 7.5
miles from SH 72 to York Cemetery Rd, right .5
miles

Centennial marker marks the site of the home of
Texas patriot and co-founder of Yorktown, killed
while tracking Indians. Burial site of Capt York
and his son-in-law James Madison Bell is in a
cemetery on private property in a mott of trees
that can be seen across the road from the marker.

CITY OF YOAKUM

1. Holy Cross Lutheran Church,

605 US 77A, .1 mile from SH 111

The dominantly German Lutheran congregation
met in.various locations from 1888 until the
sanctuary at this site was dedicated in 1952, the
Children's Building added in 1982.

2. Original Yoakum National Bank Building,
207 W. Grand St.

First National Bank of Yoakum, reorganized as
Yoakum National Bank, operated in bu
this site from the early 1890s to 1971.

3. Downtown Yoakum Historic District,

100-200 W Grand St, 400-500 Lott St

Sitting on the DeWitt and Lavaca County line,
four blocks intersected by W Grand and Lott
Street with many historic buildings, including the
Green-Welhausen Building.
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4. Grand Theatre, 212 W May St

Operated at this location from the early 1930s till
1991, the theater was restored and opened in
2016. Check yoakumgrandtheater.com for movie
dates and times.

5. Municipal Power Plant, 870 Front St
Erected in 1932 as the city's power plant,
electricity produced here until the 1960s, now
the home of the Yoakum Public Library.

6. Yoakum Heritage Museum, 312 Simpson St
Housed in a 1912 Victorian home, ongoing
exhibits showcase Yoakum's history as a railroad
hub and leather goods industrial center; short
term exhibits are also presented.

7. Asberry School, Aubrey & Pullium St on

pus of Yoakum Intermediate School
Formerly known as Yoakum Negro School,
tradition states the building was erected with
philanthropic funds from the president of Sears,
Roebuck & Company, Julius Rosenwald.

NORTH OF CUERO

1. Cameron, First County Seat of DeWitt County,
FM 766 3 miles from Esplanade & Reuss Blvd
Historical marker marks the site, details on
marker.

2. Bellevue Cemetery/Cheapside Community,
FM 766 7.5 miles from Esplanade & Reuss Blvd,
left on Bellevue Cemetery Road 6 miles
Cemetery is all that remains after early church,
school, and lodge hall were moved 1.5
north to Cheapside in Gonzales County.

3. Site of Friar-Cardwell Stage Stand,

US 183 N 3 miles from Broadway

Historical marker marks the site of the first trade
center, post office, and stop on stagecoach lines
between San Antonio and coastal towns.

4. Buchel Community and School,

US 183 N 5 miles from Broadway, left on Old
Gonzales Road 1 mile

Community settled as early as 1839, school bi
in 1921 closed in 1950, used as a community
center for many years.

5. Lockhart Community Cemetery,

US 183 N 5 miles from Broadway, left on
Lockhart Cemetery Road

Oldest known African American burial ground in
DeWitt County, New Hope Missionary Baptist
Church sits among the graves.

6. Stevens Cemetery,

US 183 N 9 miles from Broadway

Marker on US 183, cemetery down Stevens
Cemetery Road.

7. San Pedro Cemetery,
US 183 N 10 miles from Broadway
Historic Texas Cemetery established in 1920.

8. Town of Concrete and Concrete College
Marker, US 783 N 10 miles from Broadway
Earliest townsite surveyed in DeWitt County,
historical marker marks the site of Concrete
College, a well respected state-chartered coed
stitution.

9. Stagecoach Inn,

US 183 N 14.5 miles from Broadway

Marker on US 183; on private property, inn can
be viewed from Whitley Road, was built of hand-
quarried stone.
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10. City of Hochheim and Hochheim Cemetery,
US 183 N 15 miles from Broadway, City of
Hochheim Road to Hochheim Cemetery Road
Marker on US 183; cemetery marker at
cemetery; old Hochheim School used by
Masonic Lodge for over 100 years.

NORTHEAST OF CUERO

1. Von Hugo-Von Clausen Family Cemetery,

SH 111 W. 4 miles from Dairy Queen in Yoakum
14 known graves of Von Hugo & Von Clausen
families, immigrants from Prussia. On private
property, the cemetery cannot be seen from the
road.

2. St Ann's Church & Cemetery, SH 111 W. 4.5
miles from Dairy Queen in Yoakum

Church & cemetery established for Eastern
European immigrants of Catholic faith.

3. Mount Zion Baptist Church

US 77A S. 7.5 miles from Dairy Queen in Yoakum
Worship held in a number of places from 1869
till 1890 when a church was built near this site.
Go east on Edgar Leesville Road .5 mile, right on
0ld Cuero Road .1 mile to driveway of Mount
Zion Missionary Baptist Church driveway.

4. May-Hickey Home, FIM 682 at intersection of
SH 111 East & Edgar St. S 2 miles to first
intersection with Rice Davis Rd.

On private property, the log home with open
dogtrot and stone chimneys on either end can be
viewed looking south from this intersection.

5. County Line School, Church & Cemetery
FM 682 at intersection of SH 111 East & Edgar
St. S 7.5 miles

The cemetery is all that remains of the
community that straddled the DeWitt and
Lavaca County line.

6. Terryville Community, Church & Cemetery
FM 682 at intersection of SH 111 East & Edgar
St. S 8.5 miles to intersection with FM 1447
Terryville moved to this site in 1881 where a
Baptist Church and a few houses remain. A
historical marker marks the site of Old Terryville
3 miles farther, through two 90-degree turns on
FM 682.

7. Hebron Community, Church, & Cemetery,
FIM 682 at intersection of SH 111 East & Edgar
St. S 12.5 miles, left on CR 437 (Hebron Church
Road) 1 mile

Hebron Church built in 1855 from lumber
shipped from Florida to Texas and brought by
oxcart from Indianola, first recorded burial in
1867.

8. Stratton Community Marker and Alexander
Cemetery, FIVM 682 at intersection of SH 111 East
& Edgar St. S 8.6 miles, right on FM 1447, 6.5
miles to marker at church, right on Baptist
Church Road .5 mile, right on Matthew-Adams
Rd. .5 mile to cemetery

Primitive Baptist Church, established in 1883,
and Alexander Cemetery are remnants of the
pioneer community in established in this area.



@ CITY OF CUERO
1. DeWitt County Courthouse
2. First United Methodist Church of Cuero
3. First Presbyterian Church of Cuero
4. St Michael's Catholic Church & School
5. Cuero Heritage Museum
6. Grace Episcopal Church
7. St Mark's Lutheran Church
8. Chisholm Trail Heritage Museum
9. English German School
10. Buchel Bank Building
11. Pharmacy & Medical Museum of Texas
12. Early Texas Bandstands
13. Cuero Land & Immigration Company Marker
14. Brayton Flying Field Marker
15. Morgan Steamship Line Marker
16. Roy Harmon Drive and Leonard Roy Harmon Marker
17. Municipal Park Clubhouse
18. Let Freedom Ring Veterans Park
19. Centennial Marker for DeWitt County
20. Cuero Marker
21. Roy Benavides Monument i
22. Hillside Cemetery |
23. DeWitt County Historical Museum
24. Daule School

. CITY OF YORKTOWN

1. DeWitt County Centennial Marker

2. Holy Cross Catholic Church and Cemetery
3. Vietnam Veterans Memorial

4. Yorktown Co-Founders Marker

5. Yorktown Historical Museum

6. Westside Cemetery

7. Upper Yorktown Cemetery

8. Site of Home of Captain John York

@ CITY OF NORDHEIM
1. Jubilee Park Pavilion
2. Nordheim Museum
3. Nordheim Shooting Club
4. Pilot Knob Cemetery/Nordheim Cemetery
5. Broadway Bar & Grill

@ SOUTH OF CUERO
1. Clinton
2. Hopkinsville Community
3. Site of Home of Robert Justice Kleberg
4.St John Evangelical Lutheran Church & Cemetery
5. Meyersville Community & Meyersville Post Office
6. Saints Peter & Paul Catholic Church & Cemetery
7. Five Mile/Ratcliffe/Rabke Community

. SOUTHWEST OF DEWITT COUNTY

1. Lindenau Community and Cemetery

2. Westhoff

3. Shiloh Community and Woods Cemetery
4. Gruneau Turn and Scheutzen Verein

5. Lithuanians in Texas Marker

6. Garfield Shooting Club

7. Saint Ann Cemetery/Sociedad Cementerio
Union Mexicana Cemetery

8. Cabeza Marker
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@ NORTH OF CUERO

. Cameron

. Bellevue Cemetery/Cheapside Community
. Friar-Cardwell Stage Stand

. Buchel Community and School

. Lockhart Community Cemetery

. Stevens Cemetery

. San Pedro Cemetery

. Concrete and Concrete College

. Stagecoach Inn

0. Hochheim and Hochheim Cemetery

Honored Past...Brig

@ NORTHEAST OF CUERO
1. Von Hugo-Von Clausen Family Cemetery
2. St Ann's Church & Cemetery
3. Mount Zion Baptist Church
4. May-Hickey Home
5. County Line School, Church & Cemetery
6. Terryville Community, Church & Cemetery
7. Hebron Community, Church, & Cemetery
8. Stratton Community Marker and Alexander Cemetery

@ CITY OF YOAKUM
1. Holy Cross Lutheran Church
2. Yoakum National Bank Building
3. Downtown Yoakum Historic District
4. Grand Theatre
5. Municipal Power Plant
6. Yoakum Heritage Museum
7. Asberry School

@ SOUTHEAST OF CUERO
1. Taylor Family Cemetery
2. Burns Station Cemetery/Irish Creek/Verhelle
3. Thomaston Community and Thomaston Cemetery
4. Zion Evangelical Lutheran Church of Arneckeville &
Zion Arneckeville Cemetery
5. Ameckeville
6. Golly Hollow School and Community
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